South West Chilterns Community Board agenda
Date:

Tuesday 23 February 2021

Time:

6.30 pm
Virtual meeting via MS Teams. Join this meeting by clicking on the link below
5 minutes before the meeting is scheduled to start.

Venue:

Microsoft Teams meeting - Join on your computer or mobile app
Click here to join the meeting
This meeting will also be recorded and subsequently available to view via the
Buckinghamshire Council website.

Membership:
Councillor Dominic Barnes (Buckinghamshire Council) (Chairman), Councillor David Watson
(Buckinghamshire Council) (Vice-Chairman), Councillor Julia Adey (Buckinghamshire
Council), Councillor Mike Appleyard (Buckinghamshire Council), Councillor Suzanne Brown
(Buckinghamshire Council), Councillor Alex Collingwood (Buckinghamshire Council), Fawley
Meeting, Great Marlow Parish Council, Hambleden Parish Council, Councillor Mark Harris
(Buckinghamshire Council), Hedsor Meeting, Ibstone Parish Council, Councillor David
Johncock (Buckinghamshire Council), Lane End Parish Council, Councillor Julia Langley
(Buckinghamshire Council), Councillor Tony Lee (Buckinghamshire Council), Little Marlow
Parish Council, Marlow Town Council, Councillor Neil Marshall (Buckinghamshire Council),
Councillor Ian McEnnis (Buckinghamshire Council), Marlow Bottom Parish Council,
Medmenham Parish Council, Councillor Richard Scott (Buckinghamshire Council), Councillor
Jean Teesdale (Buckinghamshire Council), Turville Parish Council, Councillor Chris
Whitehead (Buckinghamshire Council), Councillor Roger Wilson (Buckinghamshire Council)
and Wooburn and Bourne End Parish Council
Agenda Item

Time

1

Welcome/Introduction

18:30

2

Apologies for Absence

Page No

3

Declarations of interest

4

Notes of the last meeting
To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 24 November
2020.

5

Waste - High Heavens Re-development
A presentation will be provided by Mr Steve Bell, Waste
Commissioning Lead Officer Neighbourhood Services.

18:40

6

Covid-19 Update
To be presented by the Chairman, Councillor Dominic
Barnes.

18:55

7

Air Pollution
A presentation will be provided by Mr Carl Griffin, Control
of Pollution Officer and Ms Anna Savage from AECOM Ltd.

19:00

15 - 22

8

Budget Overview
To be presented by the Chairman, Councillor Dominic
Barnes.

19:15

23 - 24

9

Working Group - Covid-19 Recovery Group
To be presented by Councillor Suzanne Brown.

19:20

25 - 46

10

Working Group - Transport, Infrastructure, Reopening of
High Streets and Regeneration
To be presented by Councillor Alex Collingwood.

19:35

47 - 72

11

The South West Chilterns Community Board Action Plan
The action plan is provided for information.

19:55

73 - 82

12

Any Other Business
To be presented by the Chairman, Councillor Dominic
Barnes.



13

Ward budgets.
Questions are invited prior to the meeting, please
contact Makyla Devlin, Community Board Coordinator.

Date of the next meetings
Wednesday 23 June 2021
Wednesday 22 September 2021
Wednesday 24 November 2021
All starting at 6.30 pm.

5 - 14

If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support
in place.
For further information please contact: Makyla Devlin (Community Board Co-ordinator) on
07932 240072, email Makyla.Devlin@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

South West Chilterns Community Board minutes
Minutes of the meeting of the South West Chilterns Community Board held on Tuesday 24
November 2020 in Via MS Teams, commencing at 6.30 pm and concluding at 8.29 pm.

Members present
Councillor D Barnes, Councillor D Watson, Councillor J Adey, Councillor M Appleyard,
Councillor S Brown, Councillor A Collingwood, Fawley Meeting, Hambleden Parish Council,
Councillor M Harris, Councillor D Johncock, Lane End Parish Council, Councillor J Langley,
Councillor T Lee, Little Marlow Parish Council, Marlow Town Council, Councillor N Marshall,
Medmenham Parish Council and Councillor R Scott

Others in attendance
Sgt R Hughes, T Evans, L Sokolowksi, J Ryans, S Taylor, M Devlin and L Jeffries and S Taylor

Agenda Item
1

Apologies for Absence
[The apologies were not read out at the start of the meeting; however, apologies
had been received from Councillor Chris Whitehead, Wooburn and Bourne End
Parish Council, Councillor Roger Wilson, Councillor Ian McEnnis and Councillor
Richard Scott (Ibstone Parish Council)].

2

Welcome/Introduction
The Chairman, Councillor Dominic Barnes, introduced himself and welcomed
everyone to the meeting and advised that the aim of the Community Board (CB) was
to work in partnership with the community to make a difference using funding to
support community projects and initiatives. The action plan, included in the agenda
pack, was a fluid document and the majority of the ‘business’ was carried out by the
working groups. Everyone, including members of the public, was welcome to ask
questions during the meeting. The Chairman stated he was looking forward to the
CB membership growing as promotion continued across the area and he welcomed
Mr Lloyd Jeffries, the Service Director Champion of the South West Chilterns CB.

3

Declarations of interest
There were no declarations of interest.

4

Notes of the last meeting
Councillor Tony Lee proposed that the minutes of the last meeting were an accurate
record; Councillor David Johncock seconded the proposal.

Page 5

RESOLVED: The minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2020 were AGREED
as an accurate record.
5

Speaker - Service Director Champion for South West Chilterns Community Board
Lloyd Jeffries, Service Director, Business Operations, Buckinghamshire Council (BC),
stated that there were 405 full time equivalent staff in Business Operations who
provided a number of services across BC. The Customer Service Centres and Council
Access Points (CAPs) were the front door to the Council for residents and Lloyd
emphasised that he was always keen to receive feedback on how services could be
improved. From the end of November the Council would supplement the national
test and trace scheme; when the national service was unable to contact someone
their details would be passed to the Local Contract Tracing Service who would
operate seven days a week for as long as was needed.
During the October half term the Customer Service Centre provided a ‘helping hand’
and stepped in to support families whose children usually received free school meals
and were struggling to feed them. In total, 27 families were supported and it was a
great example of cross team working involving customer services, local emergency
support, the localities team and libraries and a testament to how solutions could be
put in place extremely quickly.
The Council was supporting the clinically extremely vulnerable (CEV) residents over
the winter period; there were approximately 20,000 CEV people living in
Buckinghamshire and the Contact Centre staff would be involved in making contact
to find out their needs.
The following points were raised in discussion:


In response to a query on whether the refurbished Marlow Library would be
a CAP; Lloyd confirmed that it would be a CAP but it would be run by the
Library Service. Lloyd was responsible for the following CAPs:










Amersham King George V (CAP+)
Aylesbury The Gateway (CAP+)
Aylesbury Walton Street (CAP+)
Denham Oxford Rd, Capswood (CAP+) - currently closed.
Wycombe, Queen Victoria Road (CAP+)

A CB member commented that there were a number of community libraries
and asked if the volunteers would receive training. Lloyd explained that if
the community library was a dedicated CAP they would have had training
pre-vesting day. Training could be provided virtually if the software was in
place. [A slide deck was provided after the meeting, which included a list of
all the CAPs, and had been appended to the minutes].
In response to being asked whether it was hoped that Parish Councils (PCs)
would help advertise the services available; Lloyd agreed it would be helpful

Page 6

and that it would be beneficial to obtain information from the PCs to ensure
services were tailored to the residents’ needs and to improve services in the
future.
 A councillor asked what the main issues were in the area. Lloyd explained
that on 1 April 2020 five councils had joined to form Buckinghamshire
Council. The existing service centres were in place with a multitude of
systems and telephone numbers which were being combined to provide a
consistent level of service across the county to form a better service for
residents. It had been challenging but the services had been managing well
during the two lockdowns.
In response to being asked when BC would be able to provide enhanced support for
businesses and local councillors; Lloyd advised that there was a Member Reference
Group which focussed on building the future strategy and that he would provide an
update at future CB meetings if it would be useful.
6

Covid-19 Update
The Chairman referred to the slides, appended to the minutes, and stated it was not
possible to provide analysis on the SW Chilterns CB area; however, the data, as of 18
November, on the number of cases was broken down by the legacy district council
areas. There were local testing sites at The Gateway in Aylesbury and Bucks New
University in High Wycombe. There were also a number of mobile testing units
which could be booked online.

7

Thames Valley Police - Neighbourhood Policing
Sgt Robin Hughes, Thames Valley Police (TVP), provided a presentation, appended to
the minutes. Sgt Hughes advised he had been in the police force for over 20 years;
he had spent 12 years in the Criminal Investigation Department in High Wycombe
but was now the Engagement Neighbourhood Sergeant for the area. There were
four departments; engagement, problem solving, safeguarding and stronghold (the
proactive arm). The Engagement Department was the only operation based in
Marlow; the others were based in High Wycombe. Sgt Hughes stated he had a
small, but effective team, which covered from 8 am to 10 pm, seven days a week.
There were some gaps in the cover due to the size of the team; however, Sgt Hughes
hoped to increase the number of staff during 2021. The team were involved in a
range of work and events in the community; including covid engagement in the form
of explanation and enforcement. Contact details were provided for Sgt Hughes, TVP
and/or the neighbourhood team.
The following points were raised in discussion:




In response to being asked why the team was under-resourced; Sgt Hughes
explained that three months training school time had been lost due to the
pandemic. There was also more officers retiring or moving to new jobs than
the 20,000 newly recruited officers. However, Sgt Hughes hoped that there
would be more recruits in 2021.
Sgt Hughes confirmed that the amount of police officers assigned to an area
was worked out through a complicated algorithm which contained the

Page 7



population number so he expected an increase in the number of officers due
to the new housing being built. Two Police Community Support Officers
(PCSOs) were due to start soon and he was due one more police officer.
In response to being asked which crime was currently the most time
consuming; Sgt Hughes stated that low level drug use was time consuming
and there had been an increase in domestic violence and neighbour issues,
due to residents spending long periods of time at home.

The Chairman thanked Sgt Hughes for attending the meeting. He also thanked TVP
and Sgt Hughes on behalf of the CB for their hard work in recent months.
8

The British Red Cross - Across Our Area
The Chairman welcomed Lorna Sokolowski, Emergency Response Officer, Thames
Valley and Juliette Ryans from the Community Education Team. Lorna and Juliette
provided a presentation which had been appended to the minutes and advised that
there were a number of services which operated regionally and met the Red Cross
Strategy to support the most vulnerable. Lorna highlighted that one of the national
services was the Covid Response Service which provided a national support line and
a hardship fund. The British Red Cross also co-chaired the national Voluntary and
Community Sector Emergency Partnership which linked from grassroots to the
government to provide support and identify gaps.
Within Buckinghamshire, over 3,080 people had been supported since January 2020
in business as usual activities such as asylum support, taking to appointments, legal
help etc. Lorna highlighted the work of a few of the teams/services in the area:









The Independent Living Team at Wexham Park and Stoke Mandeville
Hospitals had adapted and reached out to its most vulnerable users during
the pandemic and often led to befriending calls. The service had reduced
their in-home support but was still offering telephone support and
connecting people to local organisations and community groups.
The Mobility Aid Service provided low cost mobility aids; all income was reinvested into the service enabling aid to be provided free to those who were
unable to pay.
The Refugee Support and Family Links Team covered a range of activities; the
cases in the Thames Valley were often complex and the service partnered
with other agencies to provide holistic support.
Business as usual for the Crisis Response Team was to provide rest centres
and mutual aid after a largescale event such as flooding or fire. However,
during the pandemic the team had provided direct provision for food,
medication delivery etc. following contact through the national support line
which linked into the local teams.
The Red Cross had a hardship fund which targeted those who had not found
support from other sources. Contact details could be provided to establish
the CB as a partner to make referrals.

Juliette Ryans, Product Manager, Youth Community Education, advised that she

Page 8

managed all the Red Cross products for the under 18s. Covid-19 had affected
everyone and increased loneliness for a large number of people and was likely to
worsen over the winter. The Red Cross was supporting people to reduce loneliness
and build connections and personal and community resilience through a suite of
digital resources. All the resources had been created in collaboration with people
who had experienced loneliness. Juliette highlighted some of the products available:






A podcast entitled ‘The Kind Place’ where strangers had discussed their
shared uplifting messages.
Two online wellbeing packs; one for adults and one for young people which
provided education on topics such as coping, connecting, wellbeing, kindness
and first aid.
Resources on dealing with conflict, disasters, emergencies, first aid,
migration etc.
Calendars, for December and January, online and in hard copy; one for adults
and one for children which promoted acts of kindness and wellbeing during
the winter and the importance of having connections and friends.
A digital classroom which ran sessions of approximately 60-90 minutes,
delivered online, and aimed to enable people to feel comfortable talking
about feeling lonely and isolated and to recognise when someone needed
support.

Juliette stressed that the Red Cross was keen that resources reached those in need
as loneliness was impacting many people.
The following points were raised in discussion:




In response to being asked whether the Red Cross had contact with social
care as they were also running programmes to tackle loneliness; Juliette
stated that the concept was to partner with grassroots organisations to
maximise the good work. Lorna emphasised that the Red Cross had close
links with organisations locally and the person involved would be supported
by the most appropriate organisation according to need.
A Member asked how it was possible to approach, and make a difference,
with people who did not understand kindness. Juliette explained that the
winter calendar encouraged small acts of kindness which would help; most
people were fundamentally kind and it could just be by speaking to someone
on the telephone and acknowledging that kindness stretched to looking after
a person’s own wellbeing too.

The Chairman thanked Lorna and Juliette on behalf of the CB and added that
loneliness would clearly be an issue as a result of Covid.
9

Budget Overview
The Chairman presented a slide on the budget overview which had been appended
to the minutes. Councillor Barnes explained that a process had to be followed and
the budget was broken down into two streams; the Community Area Priorities Fund

Page 9

(£89,130.00 plus £8,000 that was taken for the Councillor Discretionary Fund (CDF))
and the Health and Wellbeing Fund (£24,003 plus £8,000 that was taken for the
CDF). As voted on at the last meeting, the £16,000 taken for the CDF needed to be
deployed by 31 December 2020 and had to comply with the rules laid down by BC; if
it was not used it would be returned to the pot. The Chairman advised that other
organisations, as well as the PCs, could be approached to provide match funding for
projects. Funding had been provided to a wide range of organisations/projects in
the area; however, the Chairman emphasised that the funding was to be spent on
projects that would not normally be carried out by the Council. The CB had
deployed funds from the Health and Wellbeing Fund to a number of organisations
during the pandemic.
The following points were raised during discussion:


It was noted that process guidance on the CDF had previously been
circulated but Makyla agreed to re-send the information to the members.
ACTION: Makyla Devlin
 In response to a query on how the funding requests (£8,000 for Seed 1) were
managed; the Chairman advised that the requests had been processed by the
sub-group. Councillor Collingwood added that information was received on
the number of fresh fruit and vegetable boxes required; 90-95 each week for
vulnerable children.
Councillor David Johncock highlighted that the parking proposals listed in the paper
covered Wooburn Green as well as Bourne End. Two proposals for projects in Lane
End would be discussed at the sub-group meeting and raised at a future CB meeting.
10

Working Group - Covid-19 Recovery Group
Councillor Suzanne Brown highlighted that Seed 1 had received funding during the
first wave and had received a further £4,000 in the second wave to last until
Christmas. 95 fruit and vegetable boxes were delivered per week to primary and
secondary schools for distribution, in line with the General Data Protection
Regulations, to the children in receipt of free school meal vouchers.
Lane End Players – Councillor Brown advised that the detailed cost breakdown had
been received to hold an outdoor nativity play to increase community spirit. £1350
had been requested; it was proposed that the CB would fund half the cost with the
view that Lane End Parish Council would match fund. Councillor Neil Marshall
declared a family interest in the Lane End Players.
Lane End Football Club had requested funding of £930.34 for a men’s football team
to support mental health and isolation.
Councillor Tim Nolan, Lane End PC, advised that the PC was supportive of both
applications but had not yet agreed to the match funding as the PC had also received
other requests for funding.
The working group was happy with both proposals and requested ratification from

Page 10

the CB. This was seconded by Councillor David Johncock.
Jam Theatre (Councillor Alex Collingwood declared an interest) – the proposal had
been withdrawn due to the uncertainty over the covid tier situation. However, it
might be possible to fund livestreaming an event into care homes from the
Councillor Crisis Fund.
RESOLVED: The Community Board AGREED to fund the proposal from The Lane
End Players and Lane End Football Club subject to match funding from Lane End PC
or another source.
11

Working Group - Transport, Infrastructure, Reopening of High Streets and
Regeneration
Transport
Councillor Alex Collingwood stated that the Transport, Infrastructure, Reopening of
High Streets and Regeneration (TIRR) working group been looking at active travel;
more people were walking and cycling due to covid-19 and Government funds were
available towards temporary schemes such as the proposed scheme in Trinity Road,
Marlow. Councillor Collingwood explained that if the CB approved the request for
the temporary closure of Trinity Road; a public consultation would be carried out
between 24 November and 24 December 2020. It would be a temporary scheme,
from 1 January to 30 June 2021 to enable walking and cycling on Trinity Road;
residents would not be affected as their access would remain. A ‘road closed’ sign
would be erected and planters would be placed in the road. There would be no cost
to the CB as it would be funded by the Government’s Active Travel Scheme. The
consultation would be promoted via the press, social media and communicated to
local schools.
Councillor Collingwood also highlighted the Marlow to Marlow Bottom to High
Wycombe and Marlow to Bourne End cycle routes but these would take much
longer to implement. Following a comment from a member that any cycle path
would have to be separate to the road; Councillor Collingwood clarified that the
Government funding would only be granted if the cycle path was clearly segregated
from the road and would be the choice of route for residents. Councillor
Collingwood also confirmed that the aim of the cycle paths was to improve health
and wellbeing; the proposed route had been suggested to avoid use of the C100
road and Handy Cross roundabout as the TIFF was investigating the options of a
proposed Cycle path which may require a feasibility study.
RESOLVED: The Community Board AGREED that the consultation be carried out on
the temporary road closure of Trinity Road, Marlow.
Councillor Collingwood provided the following updates:


The funding for the bike racks in Marlow had been approved; confirmation of
the exact cost was awaited before discussion with Marlow Town Council to
agree the match funding. Costs and locations were also being prepared for

Page 11

bike racks in Wooburn Green and Bourne End.
 Match funding had been received for the bollards in Pound Lane, Marlow;
timescales to be confirmed.
 Additional requests for Traffic Regulations Orders (TRO) had been received
and assessed by the officers and would be put forward to the CB in January
2021.
 Other, new, applications/requirements would be processed and were likely
to take until June 2021 due to the length of the process and purdah; it was
key to receive the transport applications by the deadline in order to obtain
officers’ approval for allocation of the funding as the process was lengthy.
The following points were raised in discussion:




Following a question on whether all council/councillor’s requests for a TRO
had to be approved by the CB; Councillor Collingwood confirmed that better
use was made of financial resources if a number of TRO schemes were
combined; all requests would be considered/processed by the working group
and put forward to the relevant officers. Any required match funding would
need to be sourced by the CB. The Chairman emphasised that the PC or a
local councillor could bring a proposal to the CB if the working group had
disagreed/refused an application. It was agreed that Makyla Devlin would
clarify the process in writing.
ACTION: Makyla Devlin
Councillor Collingwood confirmed that the TIRR working group would
consider an application for electrical charging points.

Infrastructure
 New signage on Marlow Bridge would be erected in January 2021; the
bollards would be installed during half term in February 2021 and work was
progressing on the ANPR instruments.
 The work on the Westhorpe junction of the A404 would start in January
2021.
 Swish Fibre – work was being carried out on the footways in Marlow to lay a
new superfast cable; the defects in the paving slabs in Spittal Street would be
repaired.
 The British Gas issue on the A4155 had not been resolved.
Rural Broadband
Councillor Mark Turner reported that the working group would focus on finding out
where rural connectivity was poor e.g. Bockmer End and monitor whether suppliers
could improve the connection. Local knowledge would be beneficial to determine
which rural areas had poor broadband speed and Councillor Turner offered to
attend the Lane End parish council meeting to discuss the issue. The Chairman
advised that the rural broadband problem had been identified during lockdown and
agreed it was essential that improvements were made.
Regeneration
 Councillor Collingwood stated that support would be provided from the

Page 12



Councillor Crisis Fund to residents who had been made redundant.
Electric charging points were key for a green economy and would need to be
installed en masse.

Reopening of high streets
Outdoor events would be required for the next 6-9 months due to the ongoing
pandemic. It was suggested that the CB purchase a number of gazebos, possibly CB
branded with the website and email address, and provide them free of charge to
villages to hold outdoor events; costings would be provided at the meeting in
February 2021.
12

SW Chilterns Community Board Action Plan
The South West Chilterns Community Board action plan was included for
information.

13

Any Other Business
‘Meals from Marlow’ had been awarded a Pride of Bucks certificate.
The Chairman thanked everyone for their contributions and asked everyone to
spread the word about the work of the Community Board; any suggestions or
requests to join a sub-group should be emailed to Makyla Devlin
(Makyla.Devlin@buckinghamshire.gov.uk).

14

Dates of the next meetings
Tuesday 23 February 2021
Wednesday 23 June 2021
Wednesday 22 September 2021
Wednesday 24 November 2021
All starting at 6.30 p.m.

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7

Marlow Low Emission Zone
Feasibility Study
Proposal
Buckinghamshire Council

25 November 2020

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

Page 15

Marlow Low Emission Zone

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

Introduction

1.

Buckinghamshire Council is looking for quotes to conduct a low emission zone (LEZ) feasibility study for Marlow
town centre. We note that the term Clean Air Zone (CAZ) is a comparable term to LEZ used to describe an area
where charging is used to encourage the use of cleaner vehicles. Many UK authorities have been mandated by
the Government to introduce a CAZ and there is a national and consistent framework set up for these schemes.
We would propose to follow this existing framework when assessing charging options for Marlow.
The main objectives for this study are:
•
•
•

•

To identify a range of measures, including charging options, which could be adopted to reduce air
pollution in Marlow.
To qualitatively assess these measures based on likely effectiveness, cost, practicality, risk, etc. This
would need to include consideration of enforcement of the measures, where appropriate.
To quantify the effectiveness of preferred options, chosen in agreement with the Council, using
dispersion modelling. A possible set of scenarios may include:
o Non-charging option model runs;
o Charging option; and
o A package of the charging option with one or more non-charging measures.
To form a conclusion about the feasibility of introducing a LEZ and/or other measures in Marlow, how it
would need to be done, how effective it would be, and how much it would cost.

An air quality management area (AQMA) was declared in Marlow town centre in 2017 due to exceedances of the
annual mean objective for nitrogen dioxide (NO2). The AQMA boundary incorporates the main vehicle routes into
Marlow from the A404, including the High Street and A4155. Measured concentrations of NO2 indicate that whilst
long-term trends are broadly improving slowly, levels remain above the objective and the maximum recorded
exceedance in 2019 was 43.7 g/m3 at monitoring site S21 on the A4155. The primary source of NOx emissions
is due to vehicle exhaust, and the town can become heavily congested during peak hours as well as at
weekends, with many visitors driving into Marlow for days out.
We have set out below our proposed tasks to deliver this study. A staged process of work will be conducted, with
regular communication between AECOM and the Council, starting with a project kick off meeting, to ensure that
the project’s objectives are met.

2.

Proposed Scope of Work

2.1

Stage 1 Identify Baseline Conditions

2.1.1

Review of Air Quality Data

AECOM will collate and review monitoring (and modelling) data provided by Buckinghamshire Council in, and
near, the Marlow AQMA to identify areas where concentrations currently exceed (or are close to exceeding)
objectives. Historical measurements will be reviewed, any apparent trends identified, and areas with the highest
concentrations will be identified as potential areas for priority action.
The Defra national Pollution Climate Mapping (PCM) model has identified roads throughout the UK where
exceedances of the annual mean NO2 objective are predicted to occur, although we recognise that particulate
matter (PM10 and PM2.5) and carbon emissions will also be concerns for this project. The PCM predictions on
roads in and around the study area will be reviewed as part of the baseline review.

2.1.2

Review of Key Documents

AECOM will conduct a review of the measures that have been implemented (or part-implemented) through
policies, plans and interventions to date such as the existing AQAP. The success of each measure will be
reviewed in terms of its uptake and its actual, expected or likely effect on emissions.
We will consider the Council’s strategic plans for various disciplines including air quality, planning transport,
industry and energy, as the holistic effects from these documents may be most appropriate to support the
objectives and opportunities the Council can enable. This stage will require support from the client to ensure the
key documents are identified and provided for review.
Prepared for: Buckinghamshire Council

Page 16

AECOM
2

Marlow Low Emission Zone

2.1.3

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) Survey

An ANPR camera survey is proposed to be undertaken to inform the composition of the local vehicle fleet and to
create an accurate emissions profile based on vehicle classifications and ages.
It is proposed to use a third-party supplier to conduct a 24-hour ANPR survey on a neutral weekday and weekend
day to record vehicle number plates. For the core price, a single camera site in the centre of Marlow will be set up
for both days to monitor vehicles travelling in both directions only. Additional cameras can be sited at an
additional cost, but it is expected that to obtain a representative fleet mix, a single site should provide a good
level of accuracy required for this study.
The vehicle registration data will be processed through the DVLA and open source data processing software ‘R’
to determine information on the vehicle fleet composition (vehicle type, age, fuel type and Euro Class).
Information by time of day for a weekday and weekend can be gathered and this local fleet breakdown can be
compared with the default breakdown given by DfT for urban areas to determine if there are any key differences.
AECOM has worked with suppliers to conduct similar ANPR surveys for many local authorities to complete their
NO2 Local Plans for the Joint Air Quality Unit (JAQU), including for second and third wave local authorities;
Tyneside Councils, Portsmouth, Liverpool and Leicester.

2.1.4

Emissions Modelling

The County transport model will be used to determine the traffic flows, classifications and speeds on major road
links in the district for an existing baseline (e.g. 2019) and future implementation baseline (e.g. 2023). If the
County model cannot be used for any reason then we will discuss this with the client and advise on potential
alternative sources of information, such as DfT traffic count data, which may not be ideal but sufficient for the
purposes of this study.
The local adjusted fleet profile from the ANPR camera survey will be used in conjunction with the Emissions
Factor Toolkit (EFT) v10.1 to calculate the total emissions on road links in the study area, and which will inform
both the scenario testing and detailed dispersion modelling, as outlined below.
AECOM has prepared an internal position statement and review of fleet projections, and we are working with
clients on their Clean Air Plans for JAQU with regard to the ongoing pandemic event and the likely impacts on
fleet turnover and traffic volumes. Therefore, we will advise on appropriate projected fleet scenarios that may be
used for the core scenario or for sensitivity testing if required.

2.1.5

Source Apportionment

Further analysis through the EFT will be conducted using the local fleet obtained from the ANPR surveys to
determine the main vehicle contributors to NOX emissions across the weekday and weekend periods. It is
expected that the detailed ANPR fleet data would improve the confidence in this source apportionment exercises
and would specifically inform scenario testing by targeting the most significant emission sources and to inform the
level of reduction that may be achieved. AECOM will prepare summary tables or maps in GIS as appropriate to
show the contribution by vehicle type.

2.1.6

Baseline Detailed Dispersion Modelling

The ADMS-Roads 5 detailed dispersion model will be used to predict the annual mean concentration of NO2,
PM10 and PM2.5 are locations of relevant exposure for the validation baseline (e.g. 2019) and the projected future
baseline (e.g. 2023).
Where appropriate, the model will include consideration for street canyoning and gradients, as well as areas of
congestion or queuing. The dispersion modelling outputs will be verified against the available monitoring data,
assumed to be provided by the Council, in accordance with guidance in LAQM Technical Guidance ’16
(LAQM.TG(16)). This will improve the confidence and bias factors associated with modelled outputs, increasing
confidence in modelled results and any conclusions as a result. These data will be used to determine the
locations of exceedance of the air quality objectives but will also be correlated with the socio-demographic
scoring to indicate the priority areas for improvements to health (see below). The resolution of the index of
multiple deprivation (IMD) is at ward-level, and so will be interpreted proportionally to inform the range of socioeconomic disparity in the population that may be affected by proposed measures.

Prepared for: Buckinghamshire Council

Page 17

AECOM
3

Marlow Low Emission Zone

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

2.2

Stage 2 Identify Air Quality Interventions

2.2.1

Interventions Review

We will review the best-practice for local and national, policy and guidance interventions, including an outline of
the potential costs or benefits to inform this study. AECOM have undertaken a number of strategic action plans,
and so we have a library of measures and experience to identify the most effective options that may be
appropriate.
We have significant experience undertaking feasibility and implementation studies for CAZs at various scales, as
well as AQAPs for LAQM reporting. We anticipate that a CAZ may be highly effective on the affected roads, but it
is a ‘sledgehammer’ type measure that could have significant detriments for other factors and is generally less
effective for PM10/PM2.5 due to the contribution from non-exhaust emissions. Therefore, we expect that a final
preferred package would be most effective by incorporating measures based around local and strategic
interventions, depending on the level of political commitment and technical ‘buy-in’ from other departments and
stakeholders.
We will conduct a qualitative study to determine viable, effective and quantifiable measures that could be
implemented, based on existing monitoring and modelling data, Defra’s predicted rate of improvements and
traffic information gathered on the traffic characteristics. We will also use other available evidence on the
potential impacts (e.g. emissions reductions) of potential measures and use our professional experience gained
from working with other authorities, including for the local authority NO 2 Local Plans, AQAPs under the Local Air
Quality Management (LAQM) regime (for cities such as Durham and Manchester), developing low emission
strategies (e.g. for Exeter, Sefton and various West Midlands Authorities) and traffic mitigation measures (for
Guildford).
The client buy-in and engagement is essential as the project is developed collaboratively, so we can ensure local
priorities and concerns are built-in to reviews and deliverable outcomes prior to the later consultation workshops.
This will ensure ownership of the project is maintained at every stage.
We will also review the potential effects of the pandemic event, which may alter the annual fleet turnover, as well
as behavioural response to promoting and increasing adoption of public transport or active, and specifically
electric micro-mobility such as e-bikes and e-scooters.
LAQM.TG(16) also provides a long list of measures within Annex A: LAQM Action Toolbox which can also be
consulted for potentially viable measures.

2.2.2

Technical Consultation Workshop

We will put together a list of potential measures to be discussed at a workshop with key stakeholders where we
will conduct a qualitative review to creating a preliminary ranking of the measures on aspects such as their
relative impacts (on air quality and other wider environmental issues), how quantifiable the measures are,
deliverability, likelihood of success, risks, timescales of introduction and potential costs.
The workshop and any team discussions would be held remotely using Teams conference call. It is important
that attendees are wholly engaged with the process, so smaller discussion groups of 4-5 people may be more
effective depending on how many stakeholders are invited. The outcome of the workshop will be to inform the
final list and prioritisation of measures in Stage 3 (below) so they are targeted to those that bring about air quality
improvements in the shortest possible time whilst not adversely affecting areas elsewhere within the borough.
Depending on the main sources and journey purposes, measures may include;
-

traffic management measures (e.g. speed enforcement);

-

promotion of public transport (such as park and ride or bus subsidies);

-

freight consolidation centres or incentives to use non-private car modes for major workplaces as well as
charging options.

We will also review potential complementary measures, such as the use of green infrastructure (GI) to disrupt the
exposure pathway and achieve holistic co-benefits, such as improved surface drainage, greater biodiversity and
support for place-making aspirations.

Prepared for: Buckinghamshire Council

Page 18

AECOM
4

Marlow Low Emission Zone

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

2.3

Stage 3 Appraisal of Actions

2.3.1

Actions Prioritisation and Ranking

Interventions refined in the previous review (Stage 1) and consultation (Stage 2) stages will be attributed a
bespoke score based on sub-criteria, along with a weighting strategy that incorporates factors such as local
priorities, or timescales to ensure that sub-criteria of greater concern or impact are appraised for a higher
risk/opportunity.
Themes or actions that will not be acceptable at this stage for any reason will be clearly identified in discussion
with the client in order to focus further efforts efficiently and avoid wasting time.
The ranked results will be shared by email with the technical workshop group in Stage 2. The outcome of this
task will be to identify a package of measures or a preferred measure to take forward for further consideration
and quantification.
Table 1: Example of Appraisal Scoring Criteria
Score

Local Air Quality

Extent
High

3 Large area,
including key
priority areas

Magnitude
Large,
quantifiable
change

Medium 2 Discrete areas, Moderate, certain
including key
to achieve some
priority areas
quantifiable
change
Low

2.3.2

1 Discrete areas,
but not
necessarily a
key priority
area

Minor,
subjectively likely
to lead to a
change, but may
not be easily
quantified

Climate Change
(GHG)

Implementation& Enforcement
Timescale
of Effect

Magnitude

Cost &
Feasibility

Inclusion &
Accessibility

Economy

Large,
quantifiable
change

Immediate No cost
<12 months

Major
Beneficial

Major
Beneficial

Moderate, certain
to achieve some
quantifiable
change

Short /
Medium
< 3 years

Direct
minor cost

Minor
Beneficial

Minor
Beneficial

Minor,
subjectively likely
to lead to a
change, but may
not be easily
quantified

Long
> 3 years

Direct
major cost

Neutral or
Detrimental

Neutral or
Detrimental

Actions Short List

The following work is intended to refine the long-list and themes into a short list of viable measure and
interventions.
The viable measures identified in the review stages will be summarised and ranked to determine those that may
be most effective in a local context, with regard to the Councils’ aspirations to achieve compliance with national
air quality objectives, but also to achieve tangible health benefits that would specifically recognise social disparity.
It is essential the short-listed measures would also complement existing programmes that may be proposed or
have secured approval and funding, highlighting co-benefits, risks and opportunities to achieve the best possible
overall outcome. The preferred options will be further reviewed to indicate the potential effects in terms of
emissions, as well as timescales for their delivery.
2.3.2.1
Socio-economic Review
We recognise that the tangible effects of air quality interventions have traditionally been difficult to quantify.
Therefore, we will use a holistic approach that tracks the overall benefits in terms of multiple indicators for public
health and social inequality. We will do this using existing tools and data sets, such as Indices of Multiple
Deprivation for Lower Super Output Areas, and tools published by Public Health England.
It is intended that this will increase the true value of the interventions beyond the change in pollution at a static
location and ensure the outputs are relevant in the real-world in terms of health and socio-economic effects rather
than solely focusing on compliance of objectives. The review will comprise geospatial plots and commentary of
key indicators for comparable ranking of deprivation and health.
2.3.2.2
Clean Air Zone/Low Emission Zones
Our experience working with other local authorities on the predicted behavioural effects of a LEZ or CAZ are that
non-compliant journeys will either not happen, people will change their travel mode, or they will divert to an
alternative route / destination. Where this reduces traffic demand within the geographical cordon it effectively
Prepared for: Buckinghamshire Council

Page 19

AECOM
5

Marlow Low Emission Zone

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

encourages compliant journeys, and although the overall effect may be relatively small with regard to the total
traffic flows there will be improvements in vehicle emissions in the CAZ and close to the boundary. Defra’s Plan
for implementing a CAZ has defined four ‘types’ of CAZ to be considered by local authorities. The Plan also
defines the equivalent Euro classification that should be applied as the minimum standard within the CAZ,
whereby petrol engines should achieve Euro 4/IV and diesel engines Euro 6/VI, as shown in Table 2 below.
Table 2. JAQU CAZ Vehicle Classification Standards
Vehicle Type

Fuel

Equivalent Euro Classification

Petrol

Euro 4

Diesel

Euro 6

Petrol

Euro 4

Diesel

Euro 6

HGVs (Heavy Goods Vehicle > 3.5t,)

Diesel

Euro VI

Buses

Diesel

Euro VI

Cars

LGV (Light Goods Vehicle, <3.5t)

To represent the potential effects of a CAZ we will adjust the vehicle emissions profile in the EFT to create 100%
compliant / non-compliant traffic flows and model these scenarios to indicate the maximum benefit / detriment
that may be achieved. This will inform the type of CAZ that may be most effective; e.g. potentially a CAZ class B
may be more viable than a more stringent CAZ class C or D.
We will run up to four ADMS models based on the CAZ-A, B, C and D classifications for a viable future
implementation year; e.g. 2023. The results will be presented graphically to inform the potential geospatial
boundaries that may be most effective, based on the extent of predicted local air quality effects; e.g. whole town,
corridor, junction / gating. The CAZ scenarios are consistent with those defined by Defra and are intended to
reduce NOX emissions, although there will be some benefits to particulate emissions; i.e. PM10 and PM2.5, which
are not specifically targeted by the CAZ-type measures.
At this stage it is understood that a CAZ may not be the most suitable solution subject to the local air quality
effects that may be achieved due to the costs and socio-economic risks. However, it is expected the CAZ options
would represent a core scenario to compare against alternative measures and to provide context for the effects of
potential packages of interventions in terms of local air quality effects, costs, timescales and practical
implementation.

2.3.3

Quantification of Measures

The measures that score most favourably based on the appraisal criteria will be quantified at this stage using a
simple emissions adjustment approach in order to rapidly appraise a large number of potential scenarios and
inform client decision-making and feedback. The costs include testing of up to 10 scenarios:
-

The baseline ADMS dispersion model outlined above will be used to define the projected baseline.

-

However, it is expected that detailed modelled traffic scenario data will not be available, and so it is proposed
to apply emissions adjustments using the EFT to road link data to determine the effects, in terms of
concentrations of NO2, PM10 and PM2.5, on receptors.

-

This approach is similar to that used in Air Quality Action Plan studies for many local authorities (e.g.
Durham) and is considered to be appropriate and proportionate to ensure the best value for the project and
to provide the essential data to effectively inform the decision-making process.

2.3.4

Preferred Package

The preferred package will be modelled using ADMS to validate the cumulative effects of multiple interventions
and provide a definitive future implementation scenario. As discussed above, the CAZ scenarios may provide a
benchmark to appraise the efficacy of a preferred package of measures.

2.4

Stage 4 Deliverables

We will produce a briefing document to accompany a technical report outlining our conclusions on the feasibility
of introducing a CAZ or a package of other measures. The report will consider the opportunities and constraints
of these measures, including the timescales for implementation and costs.

Prepared for: Buckinghamshire Council

Page 20

AECOM
6

Marlow Low Emission Zone

COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE

aecom.com

Prepared for: Buckinghamshire Council

Page 21

AECOM
7

This page is intentionally left blank

South West Chilterns Community Board Budget – 23 February 2020

Agenda Item 8

Community Area Priorities Fund
Budget £ 97,130
Project Name

Total Project Board
Cost
Funding

Match
Funding

Type

Bollards - Pound Lane,
Marlow
Traffic Calming – Blind Lane.
Bourne End
Various parking
restrictions/schemes–
Bourne End
Chiltern Rangers

£7,007.37

£3,503.68

£3,503.69

Transport

£3836.71

£1,918.36

£1,918.36

Transport

£16,865.64

£8,432.82

£8,432.82

Transport

£18,200

£13,650

£4,550

Environmental

Total Budget Spend
£27,504.87

Total Budget Remaining
£69,625.13 (includes £8,000 allocated to
Members)

Health and Wellbeing fund
Budget £32,003
Project Name

Total Project
Cost

Board Funding

Match Funding

Type

Meals from Marlow
Age Concern
One Can Trust
Seed1
Seed1
Marlow Lighthouse
Marlow FM
One Can Trust
Lane End Youth
Club
Seed1

£2,000
£2,000
£2,000
£2,000
£2,000
£500
£1,500
£1,151
£240

£2,000
£2,000
£2,000
£2,000
£2,000
£500
£1,500
£575
£240

£575
-

Cllr Crisis Fund
Cllr Crisis Fund
Cllr Crisis Fund
Cllr Crisis Fund
Cllr Crisis Fund
Cllr Crisis Fund
Cllr Crisis Fund
H&WB
H&WB

£4,000

£4,000

-

Buckinghamshire
Business First
Chiltern Dial-A-Ride

£15,000

£3,000

£12,000

£500

£500

-

Box of Hope

£800

£800

-

Seed1

£5,500

£5,500

-

Community Board
Crisis Fund
Community Board
Crisis Fund
Community Board
Crisis Fund
Community Board
Crisis Fund
Community Board
Crisis Fund

Total Budget Spend - £26,615.50

Total Budget Remaining - £5,387.50 (includes £4,000
allocated to Members)

Local Infrastructure Fund
Budget £36,104.00
Project Name

Total Project
Cost

Rural Broadband

Costs being
compiled

Total Budget Spend
£0

Board Funding

Match Funding

Total Budget Remaining
£36,104
Page 23

Type

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9

South West Chilterns Community Board – Covid19
Recovery Group – Meeting Notes
Date/Time: Tuesday 2 February at 1600hrs via MS Teams

1.

Present
Cllr Suzanne Brown - Chair
Cllr David Johncock – Vice Chair
Cllr Valerie Brownridge – Marlow Bottom Parish Council
Cllr Graham Peart
Helen Mee – The Clare Foundation
Evelyn Daley – The Clare Foundation
Felicity Blakeman – The Clare Foundation
Paul Bolton – MMDF
Jo Cook - Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes Fire and Rescue
Nahida Latif – Red Kite Housing
Monica Bergh – Buckinghamshire Council – Lead Practitioner Youth VCS
Sarah Simmons – Action4Youth
Ron Overton – Transitions UK
Charlie Dixon – Transitions UK
Robert Rendel – Lady Ryder Memorial Garden
Makyla Devlin – South West Chilterns Community Board Coordinator –
Buckinghamshire

2.

Apologies
Hilary Martin – Marlow Town Council

Page 25

Sophie Phillips – Red Kite Housing
Aldo Simone – Trading Standards
Sgt Robin Hughes – Thames Valley Police
Lorna Sokolowski – British Red Cross
Annie Roy-Barker – Marlow Rotary

3.

Notes and actions from previous meeting (17 January 2021)

Action

Holder

Timescale

Liaise with other Councillors Cllr Alex Collingwood
to ensure all schools are
given the opportunity to join
the scheme (Seed1 food
provision)

4.

For the next working group
meeting (2 march)

Update on Projects – Makyla


Lane End Football Club – Change of manager at the football club led to slight
communication breakdown in terms of handover and the new manager was not aware
of the funding ask from the Community Board and they had sourced their own funding
for the kit and equipment and the funding was no longer required but thanks to the
Board.



Lane End Players – 3 days before the performance, the Government announced the
lockdown and sadly the open air nativity performance was unable to go ahead. They
were able to broadcast an audio performance which was listened to by over 2000
people in Lane End Area and with having a population of around 3000, this listening
stats were high and proves the worth this project would have brought. Although the
funding is not required on this occasion, they are looking at another option for an open
air amphitheatre on some ground owned by the Parish Council and may approach the
Community Board once again. They were so thankful for the support they received
and only sorry they were unable to hold the performance they planned for.

Page 26



Chiltern Arts – project suspended until later in the Summer and will recontact the
Board then. Unable to hold the open air concerts due to the current
lockdown/Government restrictions.



Chiltern Rangers – funding was agreed by the Board just a slight delay on the
submitting of the formal application which has now been received and the award
letter has been sent out



Box of Hope – this was supported and was a great success to those schools in the
Bourne End/Wooburn Green area that had been identified. Now collaborating with
the Community Board and other partners at looking at a provision for food in the
board area that will produce a model to ensure there is nutrition, education and no
duplication of offering.



Be Your Own Boss – pilot project working with Buckinghamshire Business First – this
is now up and running with promotion through the 5 Community Boards taking part.
Will be able to update more at future meetings.



Food collaborative project – looking at ways of preventing duplication of offerings
within the Board area taking into account neighbouring boards where there is some
crossover. Two meetings have taken place so far to look at various options including
fresh fruit and vegetable boxes, provision of staple foods and hot food provision.
Engaging with Helping Hand through Buckinghamshire Council and waiting to set up a
meeting to discuss options moving forward.



Chiltern Dial-a-Ride – newsletter attached with thanks to the support from South West
Chiltern Community Board.

5.

Robert Rendel – presentation about Lady Ryder Memorial Garden –
funding request



Robert introduced himself as the Chairman of Lady Ryder Memorial Gardens
Plans submitted to the Community Board for consideration (attached to these
meeting notes)



It has been well documented that 1 in 6 suffer some form of mental illness associated
with the pandemic.



The garden can assist in many ways, not least to relieve the pressure of mental health.



The garden will be divided into three sections as per the drawings (shared on screen).
A gathering area, a productive area and a sensory area.

Page 27



Overall costs currently stand at £57k although working with HMRC re some aspects
being classed in zero VAT rated category



Anticipate acquiring the materials at a discount which is currently being worked on.



Breakdown of costs so far as looking to raise £47k
o Synters BMW funding £3k
o Hambleden Parish Council funding £2k
o In reserves £8k
o Further funding injection £1k
o Application in with Red Kite Housing for £9.5k
o Application in with Heat of Bucks for £5k (have twice been their charity of the year)
o In talks with the Rothchilds foundation for funding grant.
o The team at the gardens consists of a whole range of expertise including a Physio,
Teacher, Social Services, SEND, Prison Warden, former Nurse. The skills
demonstrated enhance the offering of the project
o Looking to reach out to care homes, social housing tenants, Dr surgeries
o Funding ask from South West Chiltern Community Board is £5k

Comments
Cllr Suzanne Brown – a very interesting project and such detail shown within the plans.
Nahida Latif – this is such a wonderful garden that I have visited on more than one occasion.
Agreed that the board would like to support this project in principle and will discuss
recommendations to be forwarded to the whole South West Chiltern Community Board

6.

Ron Overton – Transitions UK






Ron Overton introduced himself and Charlie and outlined the Aspire Project being
presented to the working group.
Presentation and detail attached to the notes of this meeting
They have 9 fulltime and 13 part time staff in Transitions UK and the Aspire project is
just one area of their work. They are looking to increase their staff by May 2021.
This is a pilot scheme looking for a cohort of 20 young people (min 4 in each CB area
subject to funding.
Other CB in discussions with are Aylesbury, High Wycombe, Chesham and Wendover

Page 28



Each of those identified young people with receive 300+ hours of support both face to
face and virtual delivery.



Transitions UK aim would be to roll this project out across Buckinghamshire after the
pilot.



According to British Crime Survey in 2017, 27.000 children are gang members,
staggering statistics



11% in young offending system have attempted suicide



285 knife fatalities in England in 2018



Offending stats – 60% of females and 30% of males have a background in care



Aspire project – for those aged 13-17 years who are at risk of exclusion, criminal
exploitation and offending. To help young people who have already experienced
criminal justice system



How will this work – provision of 2-3 mentors per every young person. 18-23 month
development plan meeting the individuals needs in compiled. There will be the
provision of face to face and virtual support with further support from the Hub
Coordinator and Project Manager. There will be the provision of circa 5-6 hours
support a week and at the end of the program, there will be tapered support for a
smooth transition.



Potential partnerships (referrals and project engagement) with not only Community
Boards but with MASH, Buckinghamshire Council Young Offending Team, Serious
Violent Crime Reduction Unit, Thames Valley Police, Red Kite Housing



Funding detail – total cost of project is £40k. This works out at £9/hour per young
person – total cost £2k/young person. Looking to the Community Boards for £4k each
with additional funding from other sources and from community fundraising

Comments
Cllr Graham Peart – with nearly 500 children in care in Bucks we need to approach this with
real numbers. Some will always still stray. Concerns are that this will be just a drop in the
ocean and would like to see greater numbers being assisted.
Cllr David Johncock – 4 young people per board area doesn’t seem enough. Could you cope
with greater capacity – response – yes. When required would take on further experienced
staff
Monica Bergh – Transitions UK are speaking to all the right people. As a group they all sit on
the same committee together. The referrals are targeted referrals and will have a ripple
effect. It the longevity of this project that will lead to its success.

Page 29

Agreed that the board would like to support this project in principle and will discuss
recommendations to be forwarded to the whole South West Chiltern Community Board

7.

Open Discussion

All covered within the agenda

8.

9.

Actions and next steps
Action

Holder

Timescale

Look at application from
Lady Ryder memorial
garden in more detail
and create report

Makyla Devlin

Before the Community
Board meeting – February
23

Look at application from
Transitions UK in more
detail and create report

Makyla Devlin

Before the Community
Board meeting – February
23

Food provision across
the board area

Cllr Alex Collingwood/Cllr
Suzanne Brown/Makyla
Devlin

Continue to engage with
the collaborative
meetings to work on a
plan – on going

Date of next meeting

2 March 2021 @ 1600h – via MS Teams

Appendix 1 – Information from Lady Ryder Memorial Garden
Appendix 2 – Information from Transitions UK
Appendix 3 – Newsletter from Chiltern Dial-A-Ride

Page 30

Appendix 1 - Lady Ryder Memorial Garden

StKatharines_Panels
_201208_FINAL (2).pdf

AAAC Overview
description 18112029.docx

Sensory Area Design
improvement.pdf

Appendix 2 – Transitions UK

10.01.21 proposal
current.pptx

Changing the world
together v4.pdf

Appendix 3 – Chiltern Dial-A-Ride Newsletter

CDAR Com Board
report JAN 21.doc

Page 31

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1

South West Chiltern Community Board Funding Recommendation - 2020/21
Date of Decision 2 February 2021
Organisation Name
Project Name
Funding Stream
Total Cost of project
Amount of Match Funding
Amount being applied for
Amount Recommended

Transitions UK
The Aspire Youth Offending Project
Community Area Priorities
£9,078.75
£5,078.75
£4,000
£4,000

Project Summary
The aim of this pilot project is to provide support for four Young People (YP) in the South West Chilterns
who are at risk of offending/reoffending as part of a cross Community Board initiative providing support for
16-20 young people overall. The other boards looking to be involved are High Wycombe, Wendover,
Aylesbury and maybe North West Chilterns. The project consists of the following:
ASPIRE PREVENT- Works with YP at risk of exclusion, criminal exploitation and/or offending between the
ages of 13-17. Referrals occur when young people are not attending school regularly, are repeatedly
excluded or where there is concern about behaviours and associations. YP can also be referred when they
or their families have been involved in crime or are getting into trouble.
Referrals come from several other agencies including, Youth Justice, Health, Social Services and
Police, to name a few.
ASPIRE RESTART - Supports YP who have offended but have expressed a desire to change. Referrals for this
service come from attendance centres, when a young adult has a criminal record or is under a court order.
Transitions UK Approach: They provide a support team of 2-3 trained mentors to help each YP progress
positively towards adulthood. Crucially the success of this project is based upon the quality of relationships
developed over time. After an initial assessment meeting with the YP they design an 18 month to 2-year
personal development plan dependent on the individuals needs.
Due to the current lockdown our YP have self reported extreme feelings of isolation, loneliness, low selfesteem, and anxiety. Transitions UK have been to adapt and offer online sessions that give practical
guidance to continue their progression, techniques to manage feelings and discussions on how the YP are
affected by Covid-19, also workshops from reformed offenders engaging with other support agencies and
local businesses.
Their adapted services have taught them a great deal about how useful online sessions are and how
comfortable some of our young beneficiaries were in a digital environment. YP will continue to receive
Page 33

around 6 hours of input per week each overall. However, after the current pandemic support will be
delivered using both physical and virtual sessions. Sessions will remain person centred and linked to
individual development plans.

Personal Support Team: Transitions UK carefully match local mentors who reflect the YPs personality,
interests and ambitions. Some support work is also done with family members and other agencies involved
to ensure best outcomes. On average, each YP on Aspire Prevent receives around 6 hours of support per
week, and those on Aspire Restart receive around 4 hours per week.
Sessions are held in the community and include some social activities and round table discussions. All their
support focuses on life planning and techniques to achieve their personal goals.
Cluster Group: This adds to the support team model by regularly bringing several YP together with their
mentors. Activities will range from life skills training to sports and recreational activities to strengthening
positive friendships and encourage socialisation. There will also be opportunities to discuss development
and any personal concerns. (These can be delivered physically or virtually).
Part of their cluster group support will be the incorporation of monthly modules supplied by 7Roadlight as
part of developing awareness and avoidance skills.
Continued Support: Transitions UK expect to work with each YP for up to a two-year period, but as their
programme develops, they will gradually reduce support. As they become more independent/confident
Transitions will source and recommend employment and further educational opportunities. Below is
testimony from four YP aged,21, 17, 15 and 21 years old respectively.
Quote: “I really do appreciate all the help and support that Chris, Anna and Mike have given me. I think you
do an amazing job, and one day I hope that I may be able to give back and help others like you do”
Quote “I can’t thank you enough for what you have done for me. If you hadn’t walked into the Children’s
home that day and talked to me, I wouldn’t be where I am now. I would still be taking drugs, I wouldn’t be
in college, and I would have lost my girlfriend”
Quote “Thank you for all your help and support, it has made a huge difference just having that independent
person to talk things through with”
Quote: When I met you I really didn’t want to be alive, but today I do, I actually feel happy and more
confident and I have hopes & dreams”
The need for this project: YP can be drawn into crime by association with poor role models, living in a
dysfunctional family situation, being poor or experiencing destructive relationships.
For YP who struggle with school, exclusion can lead them into a spiral of damaging relationships which they
can find difficult to escape. Local gangs exploit vulnerable YP and often exert huge pressure to join them.
They can become victims of violence, be forced to steal or carry drugs and weapons.
Current studies disturbingly show there are 27,000 children in England who identify as gang members
(British Crime survey, 2017) and recent home office statistics reported 285 knife fatalities in England, (2018)
the highest ever recorded. Alarmingly, 25% of those deaths were young adult men.

Page 34

Sadly, YP raised in the care system make up over 30% of the male population and 60% of the female
population in youth offending institutions (Youth justice statistics 2014/15). In addition, there are dire
consequences for those unable to process life in custody. A 2015 report from Beyond Youth Custody found
that 11% of those in the youth offending system have attempted suicide.
These statistics are mirrored by our own experiences and are at least replicated in Buckinghamshire. We
are awaiting data, in April from Buckinghamshire Council’s Community Safety team, to more effectively map
need and therefore the focus of service provision. However, we are aware (from our existing work and from
partner feedback etc\) that there is substantial need throughout the county and there will be more young
people in South West Chilterns who need and want this service than the four young people initially provided
for. Nearly all the YP Transitions UK have worked with have either grown up in care or have a violent /
dysfunctional family. Some have experienced intense bullying at school or have had suffered extreme
feelings of isolation and loneliness. They are desperate for a sense of belonging which often leads to
exploitation.
Transitions UK will also work collaboratively with all sectors of the community, including Youth Offending
Teams and Attendance Centres, pupil referral units, schools, colleges, police, social care teams and
7Roadlight as mentioned above. They also work with the business community to create training and
employment opportunities.

How does the project address local priorities?

The Community Board agreed its priorities on 14 July which included priorities for Antisocial Behaviour and
Young People, both of which this project would be associated with.
This project will contribute towards the working groups objective on funding initiatives around Anti social
behaviour and young people throughout the board area.
The project identifies the individual behaviours and mannerisms of young people who have or who are at
risk of offending/re-offending. These individuals often go on to be by bullied and coerced into gang related
activities of negative behaviours to the detriment of their own mental health and well being as well as
potential physical harm to themselves and others.
The effects broaden even wider. Not only to the individual who has engaged in such activity but also to their
families, their victims and their families alike.
The project builds community safety and resilience by developing collaboration and partnership working
across all sectors of the community, fostering communication and understanding and reducing crime and
fear.
Please see the attached leaflet – Changing the world together.
How does the project align with the values, objectives and corporate priorities of Buckinghamshire Council?
This project seeks to achieve the corporate priorities around Strengthening our Communities and
Protecting the vulnerable.

Page 35

Strengthening our communities:: The Project works collaboratively with referral agencies and both internal
services and external organisations to the Council who connect and develop a community as well as being
a charity response to growing and urgent need. By improving engagement and reducing anti-social
behaviour and crime we benefit the whole community. By providing a mechanism for early intervention, as
recorded, will reduce future offending for those assisted through The Aspire Youth Offending Project.
Protecting the vulnerable:: The project works with young people who are often exploited and drawn into
gangs and criminal groups because of their vulnerability. Equally, with crime and involvement being
reduced, this will benefit other vulnerable members of the community.

How does the project achieve value for money?
The total cost of this project is £9,078.75, to which Transitions UK will contribute £5,078.75 and the
Community Board £4,000. This project will see a significant reduction in the likelihood of young people
offending or re-offending. The following will also be experienced:
• Many YP will improve their quality of life from ending relationships with people who can cause them harm
or have a negative influence.
• Many YP will re-engage with school/ college and increase their educational attainment through making
better choices.
• Almost all YP will self-report an improvement in their confidence as demonstrated with some of the earlier
comments.
• Almost all YP will self-report an improvement in their mental health, feeling less isolated and
more supported.
• All will improve their employment prospects and connect with work experience opportunities and
apprenticeship placements. At least 40% will move from not in employment, education or training to in
employment, education or training
All will increase their knowledge and awareness of the dangers of carrying knives.
• Provide respite for parents and carers of YP on the course who are at risk of offending or re
offending.
• Contribute to a safer community due to a reduction in anti-social behaviour.
• Many YP will be able to become role models themselves having lived through their own experiences to
enhance The Aspire Project moving forward in a volunteering capacity.

This provision is for four YP residing in South West Chilterns as part of a wider project. Other beneficiaries
include their families and siblings, the wider community and the services directly involved by this provision,
including police, social care and education.

Community Board Coordinator comments
This application has been fully assessed by the Covid19 Recovery Group in line with the Community Board
funding criteria, and based on this and the evidence above, it is recommended as a project which is suitable
to receive funding from the South West Chilterns Community Board.

Page 36

It was agreed by everyone that this intervention would be so powerful within our board area, fully met our
priorities based on the evidence provided and would be a valuable project for South West Chilterns
Community Board to contribute funding to.
The funding applied for in this report (£4000) can be accommodated from within the South West Chilterns
CAP fund for Anti-social behaviour and Young People projects. This does take into account monies that have
already been spent to date.
This decision requires ratification from the Members of the Board based on the recommendation of the
Covid19 Working Group from 2 February 2021

The applicant will be required to agree to terms and conditions, which include a monitoring
agreement, as discussed with the Community Board Coordinator before the fund will be formally
awarded.

Page 37

Page 38

Appendix 2

South West Chiltern Community Board Funding Recommendation - 2020/21
Date of Decision – 2 February 2021
Organisation Name
Project Name
Funding Stream
Total Cost of project
Amount of Match Funding
Amount being applied for
Amount Recommended

Lady Ryder Memorial Garden, Parmoor, Frieth
All Abilities, All Communities Garden
Community Area Priorities
£57,000 but looking to achieve £47,000 through funding streams
£14,000 confirmed, further £14,500 applied for so far
£5,000
£5,000

Project Summary
The aim of this project is to enhance the experience of the walled gardens to all visitors and improve the
facilities for the outreach programme by creating an all abilities, all communities garden to provide a tranquil
space for anyone with physical or mental disabilities to try their hand at horticulture, socialise and prevent
the onset of social isolation generally even outside of a pandemic scenario.
The area is a place to admire the entire garden from, to gather a class or to seat visitors or volunteers.
It will flow from the education centre and connect with the greenhouse to its side. It is also envisaged to be
a place of rest or reflection for the volunteers, for all who come to visit and learn from the garden’s delights
and for those staying in St Katherines itself.
Lady Ryder Memorial Garden- It has been well documented that 1 in 6 suffer with some form of mental
illness as a result of the pandemic and life in general.
The generous area will be designed to be accessible to all abilities and all ages. Landscaping materials and
finishes will combine ease of movement for wheelchairs with good drainage, and will be a range of mellow,
natural materials to fit in with the brickwork of the surrounding walls. Level surfaces will help wheelchair
users and the ambulant disabled. The raised beds will help make the flowers and vegetables and the work
of planting and maintaining them accessible to all.
Planting will also be educational, perhaps showcasing plants that celebrate or illustrate the Victorian
heritage of the garden, grouping those that are good pollinators, are wildlife friendly or have health
properties. They will also be chosen for their sensory qualities, for their different textures, for their swish or
particular sounds, for their scent and for their forms or colour which are visually stimulating.
The outreach programme has an ambition to help build teamwork and self-esteem amongst groups with
learning and physical disabilities. We will create a place where people with various physical challenges can
congregate easily and comfortably for meetings, lessons or talking and relaxing. Furniture will be part of the
ensemble - informal seating areas will be incorporated in the stepped edges of raised beds as well as chairs
Page 39

with tables and surfaces at various heights to aid gardening work (potting for example) or to write some
notes or perch a cup of tea.
The surrounding walls of the garden help make our visitors feel safe. The internal classroom walls on the
other hand, particularly for our visitors with autism, can feel constraining so this external structured place
will be of particular benefit to them. This will also be a place for relaxation, reflection and contemplation,
tying in with the network of seats and stopping points around the garden.










hard landscaping – level surfaces to help wheelchair users and the ambulant disabled with good
drainage.
hard and soft edges to paths and beds
beds of various heights
planting - herbs, flowers, vegetables, hedging, and living edges espaliers
tables to seat around 12 people that are also accessible to wheelchair users.
informal seating and benching, some incorporated in the raised beds
supports for climbing plants to give structure and shade and define boundaries
irrigation system
external electrical sockets

The garden can assist in many ways, not least to relieve the demanding pressure of mental health.
The garden will be divided into three sections (see attached). A gathering area, a productive area and a
sensory area which in themselves provide the backdrop for a calming environment.
Individuals will have the opportunity to do as much or as little depending on how they feel and under
supervision from some highly skilled volunteers.

How does the project address local priorities?
The Community Board agreed its priorities on 14 July which included priorities for Social isolation,
Environment and Young People, both of which this project would be associated with.
This project will contribute towards the working groups objective on funding initiatives around social
isolation, environment and young people throughout the board area.
The project identifies the need for offering an opportunity to engage with those who may need to boost
their confidence, improve on their social skills and acquire skills relating to horticulture in a safe, specially
designed outside educational environment.

Page 40

The effects broaden even wider. Not only will this be support for those who attend, it will also provide an
opportunity for respite for family and carers who would be able to network and communicate whilst the
individuals engage with the activities.
The project builds resilience by developing collaboration and partnership working across all sectors of the
community, by having a highly experienced team of professionals on site. These include, a Physiotherapist,
Teacher, Social Services, SEND, Prison Wardens and former Nurse as well as those who are experts in history
and horticulture.
Please see the attached information to illustrate the objectives of the project and what it can offer.
How does the project align with the values, objectives and corporate priorities of Buckinghamshire
Council?
This project seeks to achieve the corporate priorities around Strengthening our Communities, Protecting
the vulnerable and Improving our Environment.
Strengthening our communities: The Project is looking to work collaboratively with local care homes, social
housing tenants, GP surgeries to promote this as a community development providing opportunities to
learn, engage and socialise in a safe environment whilst acquiring skills in aspects of horticulture through
first hand demonstrations and interaction and at varying abilities.
Protecting the vulnerable: The project works with young and older people of all ages and abilities where
common goals can be shared within a safe environment. It provides an opportunity for engagement with
highly trained members of staff with the focus being on educating with hands on practical involvement
forming the basis of the learning.
Improving our environment: The space within the beautiful walled gardens will be developed, landscaped
and furnished with plants, trees, shrubs and flowers in relation to the seasons providing a backdrop for
encouraging insects and butterflies. The gardens will be accessible to all whether on foot or by mobility aids.
The skills learned by the visitors can be developed and are of course portable so can be transferred within
their own surroundings.
How does the project achieve value for money?
The total cost of this project is £57,000 although they are looking to raise £47,000 through donations of
time, materials and monetary contributions and this total is likely to be less. Various support has already
been received/applied for as follows:
 Synters BMW - £3,000
 Hambleden Parish Council - £2,000
 Red Kite Housing - £9,500
 Heart of Bucks - £5,000
 In talks with The Rothchild Foundation
 Reserves - £8,000
Nahida Latif from Red Kite Housing as visited the site on more than one occasion and has first hand
understanding and experience of the benefits that this project will bring over and above what is already
demonstrated.
Once the area is fully developed, the upkeep and maintenance will be part of the day to day work that is
carried out by teaching and passing on skills and knowledge.

Page 41

By looking to local suppliers, the overall costings are likely to be reduced through being able to purchase
items at cost and in some cases perhaps donated.
The volunteers in the team donate their time and abilities tirelessly for the benefit of others and encourage
participation no matter what the ability of an individual is.
The proof of how valuable this project will be lies in the detailed plans that have been put forward to this
board in one of our more rural areas.

Community Board Coordinator comments
This application has been fully assessed by the Covid19 Recovery Group in line with the Community Board
funding criteria, and based on this and the evidence above, it is recommended as a project which is suitable
to receive funding from the South West Chilterns Community Board.
It was agreed by everyone that this project would prove to be so valuable within our board area, based out
in one of our rural villages but can be utilised by anyone from across the area.
This fully meets our priorities based on the evidence provided and would be a valuable project for South
West Chilterns Community Board to contribute funding to.
The funding applied for in this report (£5.000) can be accommodated from within the South West Chilterns
CAP fund for young and older people projects, and both social isolation and environment agendas. This does
take into account monies that have already been spent to date.
As detailed in the attached drawings, the walled garden area once developed, will be an outstanding place
to visit and how fortunate we are to have this available in our own board area where individuals can
experience first hand the benefits from hands on horticultural skills with in a place of solitude.
This decision requires ratification from the Members of the Board based on the recommendation of the
Covid19 Working Group from 2 February 2021

The applicant will be required to agree to terms and conditions, which include a monitoring
agreement, as discussed with the Community Board Coordinator before the fund will be formally
awarded.

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10

South West Chilterns Community Board – Transport,
Infrastructure, Reopening of High Street, Regeneration
– Meeting Notes
Date/Time: Thursday 11 February at 1830hrs via MS Teams

1.

Present
Cllr Alex Collingwood
Cllr Julia Adey
Cllr Mike Appleyard
Cllr Mark Harris
Cllr Chris Whitehead
Cllr Ian McEnnis
Cllr Roger Wilson
Cllr Dominic Barnes
Cllr Jocelyn Towns – Marlow Town Council
Cllr Valerie Brownridge – Little Marlow Parish Council
Liz Lorente – Transition Town Marlow
Nick Rowcliffe
Margaret McCarthy
Hilary Martin – Marlow Town Council
Tim Bingham
John Laker – Marlow Energy Group

Page 47

George Lawrence – The Marlow Society
Kevin Allen – Buckinghamshire Council
Frances Clarke – Buckinghamshire Council
Makyla Devlin – South West Chilterns Community Board Coordinator –
Buckinghamshire

2.

Apologies
Cllr Julia Langley
Cllr David Johncock
Cllr Mark Turner - Fawley
Jacqueline Ford
Paul Deriez

3.

Notes and actions from previous meeting
Action

Holder

Timescale

Update

Date

Trinity Road –
Active travel
proposal

Cllr Alex
Collingwood

March 2021

Final design
released
(attached)

11/02/21

Community
Events –
investigation to
be carried out in
respect of costs
for gazebos etc

Cllr Alex
In readiness
Collingwood/Makyla for SWC CB
Devlin
meeting in
March

Covid
Activity has
caused a
delay ongoing

11/02/21

Compile a short
summary
document on
how the funding
works to assist
with what we are
aiming to achieve

Cllr Alex
Collingwood

Ongoing –
to be
completed
by February
TIRR
meeting

21/01/21

By January
working
group
meeting

Page 48

4.

Blind Lane,
Bourne End –
check with
Officers that this
scheme is
proceeding

Cllr Alex
Collingwood

Before
February
TIRR working
group
meeting.
Circulate to
Cllr Adey and
Parish
Council.

All were
updated
prior to
meeting

11/02/21

Circulate details
of BBF pilot to
working group

Makyla Devlin

To be
Completed
attached and at sent out.
circulated
with the
meeting
notes

21/01/21

Compile a short
summary
document on
how the funding
works to assist
with what we are
aiming to achieve

Cllr Alex
Collingwood

To be
completed
in readiness
for next
financial
year

11/02/21

Introduction

Welcome and introduction from Cllr Alex Collingwood. We have guests this evening from
Buckinghamshire Council, Kevin Allen and Frances Clarke who are here to talk through the
Westhorpe Construction. Kevin is overseeing the project overall and Frances is day-to-day
Project Managing the works.

5.

Transport

Westhorpe Scheme - Presentation was made (link attached). This covers objectives, the scope
and the milestones.
The following were highlighted as key points


This is a scheme valuable to Globe Park



The scheme was proposed to reduce the traffic problems in the area

Page 49



It was back in 2016 when proposed changes were initiated to get to where the project
lies today.

Comments


Tim - Where the road exits A404, this has suffered from surface water and flooding in
the past – Response from Frances, the issues here have been discussed and there will
be improvements to the current drainage system. This will also be fed back to
Highways England.



Cllr Chris Whitehead – as someone who uses the junction frequently, will there be
lane management in place – Response from Frances – signage will be very clear in the
area to prevent issues with the lanes. Response from Kevin – with regards to larger
vehicles, lorries etc, the area turning movement calculations have been produced to
allow for mistakes on approach which if happens, they will go back onto the A4155. If
this option is abused then a TRO will be introduced for changes.



Cllr Mark Harris – with regards to vegetation work that has been/is being carried out
and published on social media, this has upset some residents in terms of why millions
of pounds are being spent on a project that may not be needed due to new ways of
working following the pandemic – Response from Margaret MacCarthy – not really
sure yet what businesses will look like moving forward but, feedback is that office
space will be occupied once again. There was a problem with occupancy in 2016 and
then the park was at 35% vacancy and still there were issues with the junction hence
the initiation of the project.



Cllr Valerie Brownridge – Will there be any mitigation measures on the A4155 towards
Little Marlow/Bourne End during construction as the problems will go beyond the
junction itself? Response from Frances – this is key to minimise the disruption and I will
be personally assessing the traffic management plans for effectiveness.



Cllr Roger Wilson – the egress from the industrial park of an evening. Surely a solution
would be for a traffic light at the top? This doesn’t appear to be on the plan or anything
down by Gt Marlow School. Temporary traffic lights were an option. Why was this
dropped? Response from Frances – when this proposal went to consultation there
were 3 considerations. 1. A slip lane, 2. Traffic signals by the roundabout, 3. Creating
a route through a closed up entrance. The third option was dropped and the first two
were pushed forward for further consideration. Response from Margaret MacCarthy –
the park egress will be looked at in more detail in terms of additional improvements
following the initial construction.



Cllr Julia Adey – want to strong reiterate the point made by Cllr Brownridge in terms
of the signage. This really needs to be pushed further back into Wooburn Green and

Page 50

Bourne End to prevent congestions. Response from Frances – variable message signs
could be used. Wil check on the map as to their location. That said, hoping that due to
the research and careful planning that there will not be too much traffic management
disruption.


Cllr Chris Whitehead – this area is densely populated and the Marlow Streets in the
area are narrow. Has this all been taken into account during the project and the impact
it will have there? Response from Cllr Alex Collingwood – this is the off slip road at the
rear of the fire station to enable improvements to traffic flow off the A404 into Globe
Park. Egress is still to be addressed as discussed previously once the rest has been
implemented.



Cllr Mark Harris – vegetation following construction – will there be a reduction in the
amount of trees and shrubbery in the area once the construction has been completed?
Response from Frances – there will be less just in the tarmac area but the landscape
will be looked into for the remedial plan in liaison with Marlow Town Council. Will do
as much as possible post construction. There will be further updates on this at future
meetings.



Liz Lorente – bicycle routes there. There was suggestion that on the traffic light
proposal option, there would have been an advanced stop lane but this isn’t the case.
Can there be some assurance that there will be an alternative or improved route to
cross the A404? Response from Cllr Alex Collingwood – the Volvo bridge is to be
discussed further with Highways England as an option for this.



Liz Lorente – the newt ditch to stop flooding as this is a known flood area. Any trees
that are removed to make way for development should be replaced to prevent
flooding. The croft is one area. Can we get a guarantee that this will happen? Response
from Frances – we recognise the importance of this and will feed that back. Regarding
the flooding, the drainage design solution will be fit for purpose. Response from Kevin
– this will be reiterated to Highways England as important to prevent ponding and
pooling. We are working with Marlow Town Council on the vegetation. The new
drainage will link into the current drains and will be the responsibility of Highways
England interms of the upkeep, maintenance and salting moving forward.



Nick Rowcliffe – cycling. Low cost but perhaps high impact would be a slightly higher
fence where cyclists go over the A404 could be considered.

Page 51

Trinity Road Scheme – (design information attached)


Letter being sent out to 1000 houses over the next week



This will be online from the 17th onwards, feedback for 4 March then for Active Travel
team to sign off for an implementation date of 5/6 April



This is a 6 month temporary scheme



Review at the end of the 6 months to asses if a permanent implementation should be
considered.



There has been a redesign to aide turning into the driveways by larger vehicles.

6.

Infrastructure – Broadband – Cllr Chris Whitehead (notes from
Broadband workstream included)


South West Chilterns are a leading group for rural broadband provision across the
whole County area.



North West Chilterns have shown interested and have joined our workstream group.



Cllr Mark Turner is leading on this on behalf of South West Chilterns



BT Openreach have changed the rules for applying which is very frustrating and likely
to have an impact.



The intention is still very much to achieve broadband into rural areas in line with new
Government guidelines which will be published in April.



Sue Hynard from the office of Steve Baker MP attends the meetings and she will be
feeding back the detail from the work stream.



The Council need to address that this is a vital commodity and that all hamlets,
parishes and villages need broadband even more than ever with business operating
from home and home schooling.

7.

Marlow Bridge – Cllr Alex Collingwood


The mending of the bollards begins next week



£1.4 million of funding has been secured to protect the bridge going forward.



It will not be narrower than 2m and normal cars and small vans will be able to get
through and cross the bridge.



The works are to repair/replace the bearings and the footways on the bridge

Page 52



Confirmed that once the works have been completed then the unfinished painting will
be completed also. Estimated time for this to be completed is October 2021.



This work is future proofing the bridge for the next 10-15 years.



John Laker – over the last 10 years, so much money has been spent on bollards on the
bridge. 10 years ago, I suggested that a camera should be on the bridge imposing fines
to those who should not be using it and this would negate the need for bollards.
Response from Cllr Alex Collingwood – both are needed. ANPR will be installed but
this wont be immediate, plans for the future

8.

Reopening of High Streets – Cllr Alex Collingwood (slides from
Jacqueline Ford attached)



The first slide was an overview of our first reopening activities back in June.
Slide 2 – we have ‘real life’ experience now of how people have social distanced in our
towns and so are better placed this time round to identify pinch points or new
opportunity areas in our towns



Keen to make sure that our smaller high streets and shopping centres are considered
in this round too as appropriated.



Looking to have a package/plan ready for when reopening can begin taking into
account learnings from the initial lockdown.



Looking at a business survey to gain understanding on how the businesses feel, their
needs and their ideas



As you can see in slide 3 (attached), there are various options. Planters for social
distancing but need to consider the maintenance and upkeep after purchase



Hand sanitising stations, mobile ones which could possibly be hired then now
ownership issues at the end. They would be in addition to any provision that would be
inside businesses so will require to be put out and taken in at the beginning and end
of each day.



Signage – we are looking for a softer more friendly ‘welcome back’ approach this time
after the current ‘stay at home’ (see examples on slide 3)



Also looking to develop a suite of social media ready graphics with ‘welcome back’,
‘shop local’, we’ve missed you’ etc so that these can mirror the signage and support
local campaigns. Want to produce some hearts made for shopkeepers to hold saying
welcome back so that these can be used for social media as well.

Page 53

Question out to the group. What would you like to see in your local areas? There is funding
available. All comments will be fed back to Jacqueline Ford


John Laker – concerned about Covid-19 in general and face masks. Very few footpaths
around the area where you can maintain a 2m distance from another individual and
in general, masks are not worn in outside spaces. Everyone is encouraged to exercise
but streets are narrow. Response from Cllr Alex Collingwood – at the recent farmers
market where the Police were approached by concerned locals, the Police made the
message very clear, if you feel unsafe, go home. Scientists are stating that is harder to
contract the virus in the open.



Cllr Alex Collingwood - In Bucks, 81% of the top categories have now received their
first vaccination. As a community we need to look at safe socially distanced activities,
for example, festival in the summer, all socially distanced. This would also be
applicable out in all villages. A package of measures for High Streets in all locations.
Open to ideas that can be considered and discussed at future meetings.



Tim Bingham – licensing for outside space. Is Buckinghamshire Council communicating
this to businesses in terms of what is and what isn’t allowed/acceptable? Response
from Cllr Alex Collingwood – those who already have arrangements in place from
September 2020 can continue. Anyone who defaults on this will have their
arrangements removed. Promotion to go out to local businesses which will be fed back
into the regeneration team.



Nick Rowcliffe – creating space is what is important locally whether through parking
changes or pedestrian schemes. Response from Cllr Alex Collingwood – keen to create
space but used occurred where some businesses took over too much space so we
need to consider what is best.



Liz Lorente – the farmers market go to a great deal of effort to make the walkways
one way. People need space. Look to widen the pathways/pavements in High Streets
and other roads.

9.

Regeneration – Cllr Alex Collingwood


Buckinghamshire Business First Scheme – there are five Community Boards taking part
in this pilot scheme which has been led by Cllr David Watson and really pushed by the
South West Chiltern Community Board. This scheme will provide places for individuals
under the umbrella of “Be Your Own Boss”. (details attached to these notes). The press
release was circulated on January 22 and the five boards used social media and other
contacts to promote. So far in South West Chilterns, 1 person has taken up the
opportunity. Promotion continues via social media, through Buckinghamshire
Business First and through Buckinghamshire Council. The information has once again
been attached to these notes so please share far and wide. An ask has gone out to all

Page 54



10.

Town and Parishes to display in their notice boards and share via their own Facebook
channels. Looking to promote through local press and radio.
To allow for further promotion time, the courses in February have been pushed back
to July so there are now opportunities for 12 individuals in South West Chilterns area
between March and July. Although planned to be virtual, if restrictions allow, this can
be reviewed.

Actions and next steps
Action

Holder

Timescale

Request information on
newt ditch and circulate

Cllr Alex Collingwood

By March meeting

Invite Carl Griffin to attend Makyla Devlin
next working group
meeting

11.

Any other business


12.

none

Date of next meeting


Thursday 18 March at 1830 hrs via MS Team

Page 55

With general invite to
the next meeting.

Westhorpe Junction Presentation

A404-A4155
Westhorpe Junction Improvements - Presentation 11.02.21.pdf

Trinity Road project

Page 56

Reopening of Our High Streets

Page 57

Buckinghamshire Business First information.

1. Please Read - Be
Your Own Boss Community Board Toolkit v3.pptx

Be Your Own Boss
Press release.docx

BYOB leaflet 2021
A5.pdf

Page 58

Appendix 1

Be Your Own Boss
Thinking about starting a business? Help is at hand from your Community
Boards!
Register with Be Your Own Boss and give your new business the best chance of
success.
The ‘Be Your Own Boss’ programme is part of the Community Board business startup initiative, delivered in partnership with Buckinghamshire Business First and funded
by Wycombe, North West Chilterns, South West Chilterns, Beaconsfield and Chepping
Wye Community Boards.
More businesses start in Buckinghamshire than almost anywhere else in the country,
and we are keen to support each of them on their journey.
That’s why, alongside Buckinghamshire Business First, we are offering a start-up
business support service ‘Be Your Own Boss’ to residents within our Community
Board area of South West Chilterns.
Start-up businesses can access:













An Enterprise Day - free to attend, this online event will answer your questions
and help you decide if running a business is right for you
A two-day workshop – A more in depth session following on from the
Enterprise Day including the basics of accountancy, producing a business plan,
marketing and sales
A 2 hour one-to-one session - with a Business Adviser.
Advice and guidance from people who have been in the same position as you
are now
Networking events to help you make new contacts
Information 24/7 through an online business support section
Discounts on products and services offered by Buckinghamshire Business
First members
An online business directory full of Buckinghamshire Business First
members with products, services and skills that may be of use to you
Buckinghamshire County Council library resources, including access to
sector specific reports and ‘How to’ guides
Business plan templates - with step-by-step start-up guides to take you from
the germ of an idea to a business ready to take flight!

Find out more and book your place on the events within the programme here –
www.bbf.uk.com/byob
For further information on discounts and services offered by Buckinghamshire First
click here - Join and Get Involved

Page 59

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 3

Be Your Own Boss
Register with Be Your Own Boss to access:
Help and guidance

Enterprise Day

A great support network

Two-day workshop

1:1 support for each participant

Discounts on products and services

This programme is part of a Community Board initiative delivered in partnership
with Buckinghamshire Business First - helping people develop the skills and meet
the contacts they need to give their business idea the best chance of success.
1. Attend one online Enterprise Day
10th February, 10th March, 7th April, 5th May, 9th June
2. Followed by one online Two-Day Workshop
17th & 24th February, 24th & 31st March,
21st & 28th April, 19th & 26th May, 23rd & 30th June

3. Receive two hours of online 1:1 Support
Scheduled in when appropriate

Join today
& book
your place
Sign up for free as a start-up member of
Buckinghamshire Business First

01494 927130
bbf.uk.com/byob
info@bbf.uk.com

Delivered in partnership with Buckinghamshire Business First and funded by Wycombe,
North West Chilterns, South West Chilterns, Beeches and Beaconsfield & Chepping Wye
Page 63
Community Boards.

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4

South West Chilterns Community Board – Broadband
Workstream – Meeting Notes
Date/Time: Wednesday 10 February 2021 at 1600hrs via MS Teams

1.

Present
Cllr Mark Turner - Chair
Cllr David Johncock
Cllr Chris Whitehead
Cllr Mark Harris
Cllr Julia Adey
Cllr Mike Appleyard
Cllr Roger Wilson
Cllr Alex Collingwood
Sue Hynard – Office of Steve Baker MP
Jacqueline Dinah-Hayward
Paul Caplin
Dominic John
James Robinson
Jackie Binning – North West Chilterns Community Board Coordinator
Makyla Devlin – South West Chilterns Community Board Coordinator

2.

Apologies
None received

Page 65

3.

Notes and actions from previous meeting
The last meeting was in January meeting was cancelled due to no real update.
Action

Date

Look at how the
Government
proposals can be
achieved and
funded

Timescale

Update

19/11/2020 Sue Hynard

By December
Meeting

Ongoing

Cllr Mark Turner
to be linked up
to Paul Caplin via
email

12/01/21

Makyla Devlin

Straight after
the meeting

Completed

Circulate the
letter sent to
Leader Martin
Tett

12/01/21

Makyla Devlin

With notes from
meeting

Completed

Circulate quote
from BT
Openreach

12/01/21

Makyla Devlin

With notes from
meeting

Completed

Organise a
12/01/21
meeting with
Swish Fibre,
Virgin Broadband
and 3 Clicks for
Cllr’s
Collingwood,
Johncock and
Turner

Cllr Alex
Collingwood

Before next
meeting on 10
February

Completed

Utilise the skills
of MP’s Joy
Morrissey and
Steve Baker
through their
representatives
to stress the
importance of
this provision in

Sue Hynard

Continual

Continual

12/10/21

Holder

Aleksandra
Turner

Page 66

our Board Area
and look at any
possible further
funding steams
available.

4.

Establish who
the Cabinet
Member for
Broadband is for
Buckinghamshire

12/01/21

Makyla Devlin

At the end of the Completed
meeting this
was looked into
and the Cabinet
Member
responsible is
Cllr Martin Tett.

Paul Caplin to
provide Swish
Fibre map for
Hedsor

12/01/21

Paul Caplin

Forward to Cllr
Mark Turner to
attach to
meeting notes

Completed

Introduction – Cllr Mark Turner

Lane End. Lane End are starting a feasibility study and building a project team. I am joining
them on a zoom call tomorrow. They are effectively laying the groundwork for a go/no-go
decision for April. There has been relative bombshell in the Openreach T&Cs we did not
know about. While there is no contract to sign as a community, individuals who drop out of
the scheme having pledged their voucher can be pursued for payment by Openreach for the
full voucher amount. Similarly, if Openreach do not complete the build within 12 months, a
contract obligation of DCMS Rural Gigabit scheme, they may not be paid the voucher value
by DCMS. Openreach T&Cs claim that if the reason for delay for completion of the build is
out of their control and they do not get paid by DCMS they can pursue the individual for the
voucher value. Openreach claim this has never happened before however LEPC are
concerned about this as it may be a stumbling block in terms of sign up, especially bearing in
mind there is considerable poverty in parts Lane End.
I have contacted Dominic Barnes as he is on the Red Kite Housing board. There may be an
incentive for Red Kite to take the responsibility of signup for their housing in Lane End which
may partially solve this issue.
Turville PC Hambleden PC. Openreach have not supplied pricing as yet for this project and
will not until DCMS have provided details of future schemes. They have said to me that they
are concentrating on projects ‘in flight’ as they have considerable workload to get these

Page 67

finalised and any future pricing may depend on structure of any new government funding
for the targeted 85% gigabit coverage by 2025.
Bockmer End – As reported
Harvest Hill – In contact with Swish now too who are considering going to Harvest Hill.
As you may know, Cllr Alex Collingwood was going to organise a meeting with several
organisations to see what Broadband infrastructure was being laid by Openreach’s
competitors in our board area.
Cllr Collingwood, Cllr Johncock and I had teams meeting with Alistair Goulden of Swish at
the end of January. They do seem to hope to do more in the board area, but sadly cannot be
pressed into any guarantees. It is clear that while the numbers are working and they are
hitting financial return targets they are given a little leeway to extend their reach to less
populous areas. They have recently joined the gigabit scheme too, so that can help with
financing these slightly out of town parts. It does not seem to be a solution however.
Cllr Collingwood also booked a meeting with Jim Anderson and James Friel of Instalcom,
attended also by Cllr Julia Adey, Cllr Mike Appleyard and Cllr David Johncock and myself.
We heard how Instalcom were installing ‘dark fibre’ only with the intention of building
resilience into the existing framework and ultimately a new data centre in Didcot. It is
basically a spine from Slough direct to Didcot. It will not be used for residential spurs and
Didcot is one of a growing number of new major data centres planned to keep up with
increased traffic volume.
So
We are a little bit in the dark until we find out what DCMS are planning. However there are
few things going on nationally.
You have no doubt read about OneWeb and it announced they had struck a tie-up deal with
Openreach to get to the rural not-spot areas. This is basically internet via satellite and there
appears to be a race to get lots of low orbit satellites into space asap. Starlink owned by
Musk are also competing in the UK market for this. Downside is cost of around £80 a month
and not gigabit capable to start with.
There is also a new deal with EE and Vodaphone and maybe others for joint ownership and
to manage and install more 3g-4g masts to help rural not-spots. Again unlikely to be gigabit
capable so may help Universal Service Obligation but not the 2025 government target.
I think we need to see if we can find out asap what DCMS are planning. Is that possible with
our connections?
Not sure what more we can do at the moment so open to suggestions here.

Page 68

5.

Open Discussion


Cllr David Johncock - Harvest Hill/Hollands Farm in Bourne End. We need to
make sure that Swish Fibre are aware of this as a new development. James
responded, any new builds of over 20 houses, Openreach will connect up for
free under the gigabite scheme



Cllr Mike Appleyard - it was established last meeting that we are looking at
two projects predominantly, the “motorway” scheme and the installing
broadband into homes directly and we need to keep the two separate. Have
received a press release from Instalcom in the areas of Bourne End and
Wooburn Green to the residents but it says nothing about what is happening
in the area and is really only a sales pitch about the company. I will be
responding to the company direct and will update the group with any
responses. Cllr Alex Collingwood responded – Instalcom is going into Bourne
End/Wooburn Green, Marlow and then across to the villages where roads are
being dug up. They are putting in dark fibre but this isn’t going to the houses.
A lot of disruption for no gain to the residents. Cllr Julia Adey commented,
the press release was just an advert for themselves and of not help to
residents. A detailed press release is needed to provide clear information as
to what is happening and why the disruption will not benefit the residents.



Sue Hynard – three MP’s have been contacted with regards to Broadband
and all have an interest, but Greg Smith MP office is dealing with this.
Question from Cllr Chris Whitehead – is the Minister aware of what we are
tying to achieve within our area and the frustrations that are being
experienced? Sue responded APPG in Parliament on broadband, almost
everyone has somewhere within their constituencies where there is little
coverage. This is such a huge problem they are looking to local authorities to
look into this under a Government framework.



Dominic John – regarding Hawks Hill/Harvest Hill, had a meeting with
Openreach and this area is not on any of their plans so nothing for between
2-4 years. Have spoken to Swish Fibre and this area is not on their plans
either. Clearfibre, they put together a proposal covering this area and
Wooburn Green for approx. 740 homes and have produced costings based on
60% penetration. Is there any other funding available if not from
Government? Response from James – Contact F and W Networks broadband.
ISP is Hay broadband and they are looking for areas wanting people who are
keen to progress quickly. Would be worth a quote from them. The Council do
not have any funding for a project like this.

Page 69

6.

7.



Cllr Chris Whitehead – the £600k pot, is this available fund to be bid for?
Suggest that Buckinghamshire Council Leader, Cllr Martin Tett is invited to
the next broadband workstream meeting to provide some steer and direction
in terms of funding available for this project in line with Council objectives.



Cllr Alex Collingwood – we need some clarity on the providers. Equally, need
to know how the £600k is allocated. Response from James – in 2018 there
was an invitation to tender and through DEFRA funding, looked at what they
could connect. The only response received was from Openreach. All of the
premises have been highlighted but relates to businesses only. If there are
residential properties very close by then they will also benefit. Information on
the above will be sent to the group



Cllr David Johncock – following talks with Swish Fibre, It appears we are
looking at areas that are commercially viable when we should perhaps be
focussing on the more rural areas.

Actions and next steps
Action

Date

Holder

Timescale

Invite
Buckinghamshire
Council Leader, Cllr
Martin Tett to next
broadband
workstream meeting

10/02/21

Makyla Devlin

In readiness for
next meeting

Provide Tender
information re DEFRA
funding and
Openreach

10/02/21

James Robinson

In readiness for
next meeting

Provide list of “not
spots”

10/02/21

James
Robinson/Mark
Turner

In readiness for
next meeting
(appendix 1 of
these notes)

Date of next meeting
Broadband workstream to meet on mid March – Date to be determined and invites
will be sent out via MS Teams.

Page 70

Appendix 1

Jack Data - South
West Chilterns Community Board Broadband Nov20.xlsx

https://www.broadbandspeedchecker.co.uk/broadband-speed-in-my-area.html

Example of the results using the above link.

Page 71

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11

South West Chiltern
Community Board Action
Plan
February 2021

Author: Makyla Devin
Date: 01 February 2021

Page 73

Contents
South West Chiltern Community Board Action Plan .......................................................... 1
Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 3
Funding ........................................................................................................................................... 3
Local Priorities ......................................................................................................................... 4
Transport, Infrastructure, Re-opening of High Streets and Regeneration (TIRR) .......................... 4
COVID19 Recovery, Young/Older People, Environment and Anti-Social Behaviour...................... 5
Actions for 2020/21 ................................................................................................................. 6
Actions for 2021/22 ................................................................................................................. 6

South West Chiltern Community Board Action Plan

Page 74

Introduction
The South West Chiltern Community Board covers the parishes of Fawley, Hedsor, Great
Marlow, Hambleden, Ibstone, Lane End, Little Marlow, Marlow Town Council, Marlow
Bottom, Medmenham, Turville, Wooburn and Bourne End. The aim of the Board is to improve
outcomes for residents by establishing strong connections between Buckinghamshire Council
and the local community. This will be achieved by ensuring that Board members are able to
make recommendations on local issues, and influence the Council’s service vision, design and
delivery in the local area. The Board will also work in partnership with a range of local
stakeholders, organisations and voluntary groups to find solutions to local concerns.

Funding
The 16 Community Boards across Buckinghamshire have been given a collective budget of
£3.9 million. The budget is split into three funding streams:




Community Area Priorities Fund
Health and Wellbeing Fund
Local Infrastructure Fund

The Community Area Priorities Fund is to be used to support local projects which will help
improve outcomes for residents that address the area priorities determined by each
Community Board, as well as support the delivery of Buckinghamshire Council’s Corporate
Plan. The overall budget is split between the 16 Boards with a top-up based on population.
The Health and Wellbeing Fund is to be used to support local projects which will help improve
the health and wellbeing of residents. The overall budget is split between the 16 Boards with
a top-up based on deprivation.
The Local Infrastructure Fund is to support community infrastructure needs. It can be used to
support the upgrading of existing and/or new physical and/or social infrastructure. The
overall budget is allocated based on the number of new homes proposed for each Board area
according to the draft or published Local Plans.
For the South West Chiltern Community Board, the levels of funding for 2020/21 are as
follows:
Community Area Priorities
Fund

Health & Wellbeing Fund

Infrastructure Fund

Total

£97,130

£32,003

£36,104

£165,237

South West Chiltern Community Board Action Plan

Page 75

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, a portion of the Health and Wellbeing Fund was allocated to
the new Councillor Crisis Fund, which provided an immediate source of funding for
organisations and groups responding urgently to the pandemic. Once the Health and
Wellbeing Fund is opened, any applications for funding to support Covid-19 projects will need
to be made to the Community Board and any unspent funding from the Councillor Crisis fund
will be reallocated to the Health and Wellbeing Fund budget for 2020/21.
With the second lockdown now underway, it has been agreed that there will be a simpler
application process to fund those key activities brought on by Covid19. This could include the
distribution of food boxes to vulnerable individuals/families in the South West Chilterns
Community Board area.

Local Priorities
The South West Chiltern Community Board has identified some priority areas which will form
part of the criteria for assessing applications to the Local Area Priorities Fund and Health and
Wellbeing Fund. Due to the Covid-19 pandemic the Board has not been able to consult with
a wide range of partners and members of the public in setting its local priorities. The priorities
can be reviewed by the Board at any time and it is expected that a review of these initial
priorities, including engagement with stakeholders, community groups and residents, will be
ongoing once the working groups are fully established.

Transport, Infrastructure, Re-opening of High Streets and Regeneration (TIRR)
The Board has identified TIRR as key priorities for the local area. This includes the provision
of infrastructure to support increased development activity and the ongoing maintenance
and improvement of the highway network. It also includes road safety, improvements of
footpaths and pedestrian accesses and increased cycle paths and accessibility through an
Active Travel Strategy. In addition, the re-opening of high streets will be looking at increasing
local businesses within our board community encouraging additional footfall.
Although major infrastructure projects and highways schemes are out of scope for the Boards
as they can only spend up to 50% of its Community Area Priorities Fund (£97,130 total for
2020/21) on highways, the Board can still play a major role in influencing decisions in these
areas and look to include this as Community engagement. Very much a collaborative
approach.
It has been identified that broadband is an issue affecting the Board area not only in the larger
towns, but, in the more rural parishes and villages. A workstream in respect of broadband has
been created with key identified individuals reporting back into the TIRR working group.

South West Chiltern Community Board Action Plan

Page 76

COVID19 Recovery, Young/Older People, Environment and Anti-Social Behaviour
The South West Chiltern area has a higher proportion of residents aged 65 or older than the
Buckinghamshire average thus highlighting the importance of promoting the flu vaccine.
There are also a significant number of residents suffering from long term illnesses which make
them more vulnerable and in need of support, although, the recent pandemic has meant that
screening for some conditions has been put on hold. The Covid-19 pandemic has highlighted
the needs of both older and younger vulnerable people, and it is clear that they will need
ongoing community support whilst the recovery from Covid-19 is underway and possibly
beyond.
The Board has therefore identified supporting older/younger including vulnerable people as
a key priority for the local area. This will include issues such as addressing social isolation for
that identified group, helping to support residents who have been shielding and may still not
be going out, and increasing the confidence of vulnerable people to leave their homes when
they feel able to. The public health profile for the Community Board has identified five
recommendations






Reducing smoking, childhood obesity and physical inactivity
Early screening/detection of cancer and other potential life changing conditions
Exploration of local dementia friendly initiatives
Promotion of NHS Health Checks
Programmes to build community cohesion and encourage befriending.

The Board has also highlighted supporting younger people as a key priority for the local area.
Employment and debt during the recovery phase when individual circumstances evolve
following the cessation of furlough are likely to be issues identified by this group, as a larger
percentage of young people work in industries which are more adversely affected by Covid19 such as the hospitality/entertainment sector.
Environmental issues are also key priorities and the Board will be looking to implement and
compliment schemes in line with the guidance being compiled by the Council and engaging
with local groups and interested parties.
As a result of Covid19 activity, the board are mindful that there may be an increase in antisocial behaviour (ASB). Engaging with the ASB team within the Council, the Board are keen to
promote the use of Street Wardens as an example of reducing such activity and linking in with
the Police for any local issues that may arise. Thankfully to date, across the South West
Chilterns Board area, the ASB activity has been minimal and dealt with promptly.

South West Chiltern Community Board Action Plan

Page 77

Actions for 2020/21
In order to address the priorities identified above and achieve the aims of the Board, the
following actions will be undertaken:











The working groups are now established and each have a Chair and Vice Chair along
with the members of the group who are made up from Members, Town and Parish
representatives and other local organisations and businesses. Working groups are
discussing the issues relating to each priority area in greater detail and are reporting
back to the wider Community Board membership. Working groups are also
considering and discussing applications for funding, and making recommendations to
the Board on which applications should be supported. There are some commonalities
between boards and this lends itself to collaborative working on projects and
identified key areas. They are also discussing more strategic issues relating to their
priority area in order to influence decisions which affect the local community.
Establishing partnership working with stakeholders and partners in the South West
Chiltern area. Engagement will be through the Community Board Coordinator or any
of the Board members. Working group meetings should have a diverse membership
which is well underway, and developing as we move forward.
The advertising of the Community Area Priorities Fund and the Health and Wellbeing
Fund through local channels and encourage applications is in progress and we
continue to look to our partner agencies to assist with this.
We are working with potential applicants to ensure that bids fit the required criteria
and look for alternative sources of funding where possible to facilitate match funding.
Assess applications and agree recommendations for funding allocation.
Support applicants to get projects initiated and established, and promote them within
the local community.
Recommendations from the working groups regarding applications will be forwarded
to the main Community board for support and ratification in order to release the
funding stream.

South West Chiltern Community Board Action Plan

Page 78

ACTIONS FOR 2020/2021
DUE DATE
14/07/2020

STATUS
Complete

Working groups to be
established

28/07/2020

Complete

Working Group Engagement

N/A

Ongoing

Networking

N/A

Ongoing

Community Board
Funding/projects/ideas

31/03/2021

Ongoing

Page 79

ACTION
Board to identify the local
priorities in SWC for 20/21

NOTES
Discussion on initial priorities took place and agreed. All members
aware the priorities would be reviewed when applicable and
updated. Outside of this, priorities would be reviewed annually.
2 initial working groups in respect of Transport, Infrastructure, Reopening of High Streets and Regeneration (TIRR) and Covid19
Recovery including Young/Older People, Environment and AntiSocial Behaviour.
Each Working group has a Chair and Vice Chair and has a
membership of Councillors, Town and Parish representatives,
members of the Community and local groups, businesses, Council
services and Blue light agencies. Working groups to meet monthly
agreed in advance to discuss relevant issues in detail. Invited
internal and external partners provide expertise. Working groups
are the mechanism for discussion and recommendation ahead of a
full Community Board Meeting.
Introductions between Coordinator and Members, Town and Parish
Councils and other organisations underway to form basis of positive
engagement. Initial conversations promoted via stakeholder
sessions for Community Board Coordinators where links and
contacts established.
Funding and criteria information shared with Members and Town
and Parish Councils by email and promoted at full Community
Board meetings. Information also available on the Council website
and provided to groups/organisations prior to applications. Funding
information has been published on Buckinghamshire Council
website with the links to the application forms.

Page 80

Applications

31/03/2021

Community Board Facebook
page

October 2020

Complete

Community Board Newsletter

31/03/21

Not started

Increased Work Streams

09/11/2020

Ongoing

Set Meeting dates for 2021/2022

01/01/2021

Complete

Develop Communications Plan

31/03/21

In progress

South West Chiltern Community Board Action Plan

Applications received into the working groups discussed in details
for recommendations to be presented to the full Board Meetings
for agreement and ratification on approach and funding. 2020/2021
budget to be allocated by 31/03/2021.
South West Chilterns Community Board page established and now
active. Links to Town and Parish Council social media pages and
local Community Groups and organisations.
Newsletter is being planned now that a template has been worked
on. This will be used in collaboration with the Facebook page and
internal communication channels
Priorities revised with inclusion of Broadband workstream linking in
to TIRR Working Group looking at broadband provision across the
board area. Chair and Vice Chair appointed. Timely reporting back
into TIRR.
Board meeting dates scheduled for 20/21 with Democratic Services
and published on Buckinghamshire Council Website.
In addition to the already set up Facebook page and the imminent
newsletter, the next step is to formalise a communications plan to
lead us through the pandemic restrictions and into the next year of
planning effective engagement with Town and Parish Councils, local
organisations and local residents.

Actions for 2021/2022
ACTION
Review of Board priorities

DUE DATE
2021

STATUS
Not started

Revision of Working Groups

2021

Not Started

Community Board promotion

2021

Ongoing

Page 81
South West Chiltern Community Board Action Plan

NOTES
Review the initial Community Board priorities to ensure that they
are still a true reflection of community needs in South West
Chiltern. Look to achieve this by local events, feedback at board and
working group meetings, community engagement (face to face
when restrictions allow) and possible public survey working with
Buckinghamshire Communications Team.
Review the current working groups to ensure they are manageable
within their subject remit, look to develop action plans for the
groups surrounding objectives and plan the meetings in advance.
Continue to promote the activities of the Community Board
through every available avenue within Government restrictions.

This page is intentionally left blank

